
 

 
OFFICIAL 

 
Agenda 

Meeting: Corporate & Partnerships Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 

To: Councillors Andy Paraskos (Chair), Bryn Griffiths (Vice-
Chair), Val Arnold, Margaret Atkinson, Caroline Goodrick, 
Mike Jordan, Richard Musgrave, Yvonne Peacock, 
Tony Randerson, Matt Scott, Cliff Trotter, 
Annabel Wilkinson and Vacancy. 

Date: Monday, 7th March 2022 

Time: 10.30 am 

Venue: Remote meeting held via Microsoft Teams 

 
Under his delegated decision making powers in the Officers’ Delegation Scheme in the Council’s 
Constitution, the Chief Executive Officer has power, in cases of emergency, to take any decision 
which could be taken by the Council, the Executive or a committee. Following on from the expiry of 
the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and 
Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020, which allowed for 
committee meetings to be held remotely, the County Council resolved at its meeting on 5 May 
2021 that, for the present time, in light of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic circumstances, 
remote live-broadcast committee meetings should continue, with any formal decisions required 
being taken by the Chief Executive Officer under his emergency decision making powers and after 
consultation with other Officers and Members as appropriate and after taking into account any 
views of the relevant Committee Members. This approach will be reviewed again in May 2022.    
 
The meeting will be available to view once the meeting commences, via the following link - 
www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings.  Recording of previous live broadcast meetings are also 
available there. 
 

Business 
 
1.   Public Minutes of the meeting held on 6 December 2021 

 
(Pages 3 - 8) 

2.   Apologies & Declaration of Interest 
 

 

3.   Public Questions & Statements  
 Members of the public may ask questions or make statements at this meeting if they 

have given notice and provided the text to Melanie Carr of Democratic Services (contact 
details below) no later than midday on Wednesday 2 March 2022. Each speaker should 
limit themselves to 3 minutes on any item.  Members of the public who have given notice 
will be invited to speak: 

 at this point in the meeting if their questions/statements relate to matters which are 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings


 

 
OFFICIAL 

not otherwise on the Agenda (subject to an overall time limit of 30 minutes); 

 when the relevant Agenda item is being considered if they wish to speak on a matter 
which is on the Agenda for this meeting. 

 
If you are exercising your right to speak at this meeting, but do not wish to be recorded, 
please inform the Chairman who will instruct those taking a recording to cease whilst you 
speak. 
 

4.   Workforce Update (Pages 9 - 22) 
 Purpose of Report – To update Scrutiny Members on the County Councils changing 

workforce, presents key workforce data, outlines key areas of work and progress in year, 
and sets out key priorities for the year ahead. 
 

5.   Corporate Volunteering Project Update (Pages 23 - 26) 
 Purpose of Report – To provide Scrutiny Members with an update on the Corporate 

Volunteering Project and outline continued progress made to date.  
 

6.   Council Plan Update  
 Purpose – To provide a verbal update on the refreshed Council Plan for 2022-23 

 
7.   Draft Work Programme 2022/23 (Pages 27 - 30) 
 Purpose – To consider, amend and adopt the committee’s draft work programme for the 

coming municipal year.  
 

8.   Private Minute of the meeting held on 6 December 2021 
 

(Pages 31 - 32) 

9.   Other business which the Chairman agrees should be considered as a matter of 
urgency because of special circumstances. 

 
Contact Details  
Enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Melanie Carr Tel: 01609 533849 or e-mail: 
Melanie.carr1@northyorks.gov.uk 
Website: www.northyorks.gov.uk 
 
 
Barry Khan 
Assistant Chief Executive 
(Legal and Democratic Services) 
 
County Hall 
Northallerton 
 
25 February 2022 

Page 2

mailto:Melanie.carr1@northyorks.gov.uk
http://www.northyorks.gov.uk/


 

 
OFFICIAL 

North Yorkshire County Council 
 

Corporate & Partnerships Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 
Minutes of the remote meeting held on Monday, 6th December, 2021 commencing at 10.30 am. 
 
County Councillor Andy Paraskos in the Chair. plus County Councillors Bryn Griffiths, 
Margaret Atkinson, Richard Musgrave, Yvonne Peacock, Tony Randerson, Matt Scott, Cliff Trotter 
and Annabel Wilkinson. 
 
In attendance: County Councillors Carl Les and Gareth Dadd. 
 
Officers present: Melanie Carr, Ray Busby, Gary Fielding, Vicki Dixon, Jon Holden, Deborah 

Hugill, Karen Iveson, Robert Ling, Odette Robson, Alaina Kitching and Simon 
Moss. 

 
Other Attendees:Lindsey Butterfield, Temporary Assistant Chief Constable, North Yorkshire Police 
 
Apologies: County Councillors Val Arnold, Caroline Goodrick and Mike Jordan 
 

 
Copies of all documents considered are in the Minute Book 

 

 
1 Minutes of the meeting held on 13 September 2021 

 
Resolved – 

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 September 2021 having been printed and 
circulated, be taken as read and be confirmed and signed by the Chairman as a correct 
record.  
 
 

2 Apologies & Declaration of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest to note. 
 
 

3 Public Questions & Statements 
 
There were no public questions or statements received. 
 
 

4 Bi-annual Community Safety Update 
 
Lindsey Butterfield, Temporary Assistant Chief Constable, North Yorkshire Police attended 
the meeting as the new Chair of the Community Safety Partnership (CSP) alongside Odette 
Robson, Head of Safer Communities.   
 
Lindsey Butterfield provided an overview of the new chairing arrangements, the work of the 
CSP during the last six months, and the delivery of its Plan. She went on to summarise the 
Partnership’s role and the agreed priority areas for delivery, as detailed in the report.  She 
also confirmed that the Partnership’s five priorities were due to be reviewed and a new 
strategy created, which would be published after the new Police Fire & Crime 
Commissioner had published their new strategy in 2022.  She also suggested that future 
reports be themed based on those new priorities. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

 
OFFICIAL 

 
The report considered, focussed on the impact of the pandemic on domestic abuse victims, 
and the opportunities and challenges arising from the Domestic Abuse Act. Lindsey 
Butterfield confirmed that during the first lockdown, a national helpline had been introduced 
and since then the CSP had introduced its own helpline, which had been advertised locally.  
It was noted that a ‘live chat’ facility had been widely used by both victims and perpetrators.  
 
In regard to safe accommodation, it was confirmed that historically these had predominantly 
been situated along the east coast, but others facilities were now becoming available.  It 
was confired that work had been undertaken with IDAS to assess the different types of 
accommodation for all types of victims, including refuge accommodation and dispersed 
accommodation.  An assessment had also been made on how best to support those who 
wanted to remain in their own homes. 
 
Lindsey Butterfield went on to confirm that: 

 Work was on track to publish a full Safe Accommodation Strategy by 5 January 2022 

 There was also a holistic Domestic Abuse Strategy that was due to be renewed in 2022, 
which included an holistic approach for supporting children 
 

Scrutiny Members thanked Lindsey Butterfield for her attendance at the meeting, and it was  
 
Resolved – To note the report and receive a 6-monthly update.  
 
 

5 Update on Council Plan Refresh 
 
Considered – An update on what was being considered as part of the 2021 – 2025 Council 
Plan refresh. 

 
Simon Moss, Strategy & Performance Team Leader introduced the report confirming that 
this year; due to Local Government Reorganisation (LGR), only a light refresh had been 
required. 
 
It was noted that Plan now included an overview of what had been achieved in the last year 
e.g. the Rural Commission, strengthening Climate Change and Equality objectives, and the 
support given during the pandemic and the recovery period. 
 
Members noted a number of sections had been updated, as detailed within the table at 
paragraph 6 of the report, and that the draft Plan was scheduled to be ready for circulation 
by mid December 2021. 
 
Members recognised the structure needed to be right for 2023 when the new Unitary 
Council took over, to support rural communities. 
 
County Councillor Richard Musgrave drew attention to the intention to deliver a modern 
integrated transport network and queried when the current Transport Plan was due to be 
reviewed. 
 
County Councillor Andy Paraskos requested a further updates on the Council Plan be 
added to the agenda for each future meeting and it was agreed that initially an update 
would be provided for the next Committee meeting in March 2022, at which time a decision 
would be taken as to whether further updates were required. 
 
It was also agreed that an LGR update be provided for a future meeting. 
 
Resolved – That the report be noted. 
 Page 4



 

 
OFFICIAL 

6 Bi-annual Property Services Performance Update 
 
Members received a presentation on Property Services Performance and John Holden, 
Head of Property Services provided an overview of the key issues, which included: 

 The net savings made to date of £900K with additional savings expected to be achieved 
through further rationalisation, increased efficiencies and development of trading 
activities; 

 Property disposals and development of the headquarters site; 

 Post Covid working arrangements and changes to service delivery models; 

 The pressures in the delivery of carbon reduction measures; 

 An overview of the projects delivered through the capital programme; 

 An overview of the maintenance backlog in schools, and improvements in the traded 
offer to schools; 

 
In response to a query from County Councillor Bryn Griffiths, it was confirmed that generally 
air source heat pumps were considered a better solution than ground source head pumps, 
but that all options were considered based on individual sites.  
 
Members noted work was underway to consider how best to accommodate an increased 
number of Members (90) within the Council Chamber. They also noted that as a result of 
LGR the new Unitary Council’s property portfolio would increase with the inclusion of the 
current Districts building which was likely bring forward a range of issues.  It was confirmed 
that a property workstream had been included in the LGR programme. 
 
Resolved – that the Property Services update be noted 
 
 

7 Annual Update on the Operation of the Customer Portal 
 
Considered – A presentation on the use of the customer portal and the ongoing work to 
encourage a channel shift to online services. 
 
Robert Ling, Assistant Director Technology & Change provided a detailed presentation on 
the Customer Portal, providing up to date statistics on the numbers of customers now using 
the County Council’s online services.  He also provided information on the methods used to 
support and encourage that channel shift and the ongoing work to identify reasons why 
some residents were still choosing to contact Customer Services by telephone.  In 
particular, he highlighted: 

 A 10% increase on last year in the number of website visits across the range of County 
Council services, driven by the pandemic.  It was expected the figure would drop over 
the coming year; 

 An increase in social media contact again driven by Covid, and the benefits derived; 

 Increased Customer Portal uptake and usage, with a focus on those areas requiring 
further work e.g. bus passes, death appointments and financial assessments; 

 The overall increase in digital demand;  

 The increase in requests for services and changes to service deliver, as a result of 
Covid, e.g. social care demand;  

 Customer Service Centre frontline and social care response and handling times, and 
the introduction of a professional line; 

 Work to improve the customer experience, with each service having two or more 
access channels and improved accessibility support; 

 The results from the annual survey of the County Council’s accessibility – it was noted 
that significant strides had been made in the more difficult areas, but there was still a 
problem around the first level of access due to the use of pdfs; Page 5



 

 
OFFICIAL 

 Work to address the issues around hidden disabilities preventing some users from 
using the County Council’s online services; 

 Update on CSC Live Services e.g. dropped kerbs; 

 An increase in the use of the County Council’s automated services, with better credit 
control driving more online payments; 

 The ongoing work to consider other services that could be taken online with a focus in 
the coming year on Children’s and Adult Services; 

 
County Councillor Andy Paraskos suggested a further push on Parish Councils to reinforce 
the use of their portal to register salt bin street lights etc 
 
County Councillor Yvonne Peacock highlighted the importance of maintaining a good 
standard of telephone services, and it was confirmed that it was regularly being tested to 
ensure it was working appropriately and efficiently. 
   
Resolved – That the update be noted and a further update be provided in 12 months 
 
 

8 Progress Update on Equality Objectives 2021- 2025 
 
Considered – A report updating Members on equality work in the County Council, including 
progress on Equality objectives agreed for the period 2021 – 2025, introduced by Deb   
Hugill   (Senior   Strategy  and   Performance  Officer,   Policy   Partnerships and 
Communities (CSD). 
  
Deb Hugill confirmed the Equality objectives had been refreshed and approved in June 
2021, and embedded into the refreshed Council Plan.  It was noted that the County 
Council’s equality and diversity inclusion policy statement had also recently been 
refreshed after a public and staff consultation, and that work was ongoing to embed 
that statement across the Council.   
 
Deb Hugill went on to highlight the progress to date made against each of the new 
objectives, as detailed in section 3 of the report. 
 
County Councillor Andy Paraskos queried how the Council was myth busting about 
the Covid vaccine and it was confirmed that consistent information was being 
provided in conjunction with other appropriate agencies, with every effort being 
made to target those groups less inclined to take up the vaccine, through a range of 
routes. 
 
In regard to the Romany and gypsy communities, it was noted that during the 
pandemic work had been undertaken to improve engagement and the intention was 
to maintain and build on those engagement levels.  Members expressed an interest 
in receiving a more detailed report on that work. 
 
In regard to the new anti-racist practice group set up in HAS, it was confirmed the 
group would take a pro-active focussed approach to anti-racism rather than 
focussing on issues that have found, with the intention of empowering people to 
take a stand against inappropriate attitudes wherever possible.  
 
Resolved – That the update report be noted. 
 
 

9 Alternative Investments - Year 4 Review 
 
Considered - An update on progress with the delivery of the County Council’s alternative 
investment framework introduced by Karen Iveson, Assistant Director for Strategic Page 6



 

 
OFFICIAL 

Resources  
 
The report provided background to the introduction of the framework in 2017 and an update 
on activity during its fourth year of implementation against the backdrop of the pandemic. 
 
The report highlighted the categories under which opportunities for investment fell, the limit 
set on the sums for investment and the targets set on returns so that appropriate 
assessment of the risks and rewards could take place. 
 
Members noted there had been: 

 Some changes to the rules governing how Local Authorities undertook commercial 
investments, with the aim of controlling what Councils could do.  

 No new investments in the last year beyond the usual drawdown of company loans; 

 Reasonable returns despite Covid; 

 Some capital losses which was to be expected given the volatility of the market, which 
provision had been made for i.e. those losses were on long term assets which would not 
be disposed of until the market was appropriate; 

 Some recovery of property funds; 
 
Karen Iveson went to provide an overview of the lessons learned and confirmed the County 
Council had adopted a cautious and modest approach to commercial investment.   
 
Finally, in response to climate change, Karen Iveson confirmed the County Council had 
looked at pursuing some kind of commercial investment in solar energy generation, and that 
following some feasibility work, a decision had been taken not to progress that option at this 
time. 
 
In response to a query from County Councillor Richard Musgrave on how the County 
Council’s returns on its property funds compared to other property funds, it was confirmed 
they were reasonable and that most of the losses in the last financial year had been 
recovered, with further improvement expected going forward. County Councillor Gareth 
Dadd confirmed that presentations from a number of property funds had been considered 
by the Commercial Investment Board, and the two chosen were amongst the top performers 
in the marketplace at that time. 
 
Specifically in regard to Harrogate Royal Baths, County Councillor Richard Musgrave noted 
its poor performance and Karen Iveson confirmed that its purchase was subject to a robust 
business case and due diligence was given to the tenants, and the current position was in 
part due to the pandemic.  In response, County Councillor Gareth Dadd confirmed that 
whilst the Authority was not currently achieving the level of profit originally expected on 
Harrogate Baths, it was still delivering a higher level of profit than the funding would have 
made had it stayed in the bank.  
  
Resolved – That the progress to date be noted. 
 
 

10 Work Programme 2020/21 
 
The report of the Principal Democratic Services and Scrutiny Officer inviting Members to 
consider the Committee’s Work Programme for the remainder of 2021-22 taking into 
account the outcome of discussions on previous agenda items and any other developments 
taking place across the county. 
 
County Councillor Richard Musgrave requested an update on Welcome to Yorkshire, and it 
was suggested that the Economic Environment & Transport Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee be asked to consider looking at the Local Transport Plan. Page 7



 

 
OFFICIAL 

 
Finally it was agreed that a future item of business be added to the Work programme to 
provide a more detailed overview of the Equality Objective 4: Improving health and 
educational outcomes amongst Gypsy, Roma, Traveller (GRT) communities in the county. 
 
Resolved – That the work programme be amended to include the additional items 
identified. 
 
 
The public meeting concluded at 12:18pm 
 
 

11 Brierley Group Update 
 
This item was considered in private session and is therefore not included in the public 
Minutes. 
 

The meeting concluded at 12.50 pm. 

Page 8



 

 

OFFICIAL 

NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

CORPORATE AND PARTNERSHIPS OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

7th March 2022 

WORKFORCE UPDATE 
 
 

1.0 Purpose of Report 

1.1     This report updates the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the County Councils changing 
workforce, presents key workforce data, outlines key areas of work and progress in year, 
and sets out key priorities for the year ahead.  

 

 

2.0 Responding to and Supporting our Workforce Through Covid 
 
2.1 In the last year, Covid continued to dominate, requiring the County Council to respond 

quickly to a rapidly changing situation and ensure the workforce was well informed and 
supported. The impact was felt throughout the year, with Covid infection causing 6% of staff 
absence as well the workforce being affected by issues such as bereavement, long covid, 
and wider repercussions of the pandemic on issues such as mental health. In response the 
County Council developed further the support available to it’s workforce, and maintained 
high levels of engagement and communication. As the impact of Covid in communities 
continued, increasing work in some areas, notably HAS, and staff absence increased, the 
County Council needed to temporarily increase staffing levels and extended some services 
to 7 day working to faciliatate efficient hospital discharge arrangements.  

 

3.0 A Smaller More Diverse Workforce 

3.1 The County Council’s workforce (non-schools) has fallen slightly at a headcount of 7,151 
and FTE of 5,461, with unfilled vacancies now seen across a range of services, following 
years of steady reduction.   The non-schools FTE has reduced since 2011 by some 10% 
with number directly employed in schools reducing by 47% FTE. However this relates to 
schools converting to academies when numbers are removed from NYCC records and so 
does not represent an actual reduction in the education workforce.  

       
3.2  In the past 18 months, the number of service reorganisations has been low, in part due to 

the impact of the Covid pandemic. Any staff at risk of redundancy have continued to be 
supported through redeployment and alternatives to achieve ‘good outcomes’ for their 
personal circumstances. Where an employees’ destination at leaving is known, 38% found 
other employment, 26% did not wish to seek new work, 3% self-employed or in further 
training, and 3% unemployed and still seeking work.  This means 97% achieved a positive 
alternative outcome and staff feedback shows they value highly the support received. 

 
4.0  Key Workforce Data   
 
4.1 Composition: the non-schools’ workforce continues to see a slight increase in the 

proportion of men with a split of 23.5% male and 76.5% female. The proportion from an 
ethnic minority background remained at 2.3% (against a local population figure of 2.7%) 
and the proportion of staff declaring a disability increased slightly to 4% from 2.2%. 
However, 25.6% of staff  chose not to declare their ethnicity, and 43.7% have not identified 
if they have a disability, despite further work to enable accurate information collection and 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 

 

OFFICIAL 

reporting, so these figures are known to be underreported. The average age of the 
workforce reduced slightly to 47.3 years and the proportion of under 25 year olds has 
increased to 4.85%, up from 4.6% last year. 43% of staff are full time so 57% work part 
time, with many of these having multiple part time roles.  

 
4.2 Sickness Absence: sickness absence (measured in number of FTE days lost) was 6.5 

days in 2020/21, amongst the lowest of county councils nationally. However, in the first 3 
quarters of 2021/22 this increased significantly with a projected outturn figure of around 8.2 
days, however this remains low in comparison with other similar benchmark councils which 
are looking to outturn at 12-16 days.   

 
4.3        In 2021/22 working days lost to long term sickness absence accounted for 55% of all 

absence with the most common causes of sickness absence remaining stress, depression 
and anxiety related (32%), musculo-skeletal problems (16%) and infections (12%). The 
impact of Covid is still ongoing, and despite only making up 6% of absences in 2021/22, it is 
important to recognise that Covid infection can also be recorded under other absence 
reasons including chest and respiratory due to the effects of long Covid.  

         
4.4 Sickness absence was particularly low in 2021 at the start of pandemic, when large parts of 

the workforce moved to homeworking, with some absence due to self isolatation 
requirements or employees being furloughed.  NYCC has, along with other employers, 
seen a significant rise in sickness absence this year. The reasons for this are varied, for 
example postponed operations have recommenced resulting in further sickness absence 
for post-operative recovery, and it is likely that the extended demands of the pandemic will 
have had an impact on absence levels. This year there has also been a rise in infections 
other than Covid which have spiked due to less communal transmission of viruses during 
the pandemic.  

 
4.5     Employee Health and Wellbeing: NYCC aims to provide a health-promoting and inclusive 

workplace so staff can feel, and perform at their best. Staff are encouraged to use the 
wellbeing initiatives and support those around them in doing so. The initiatives this year 
included: 

 askSAL, our Staff Advice line offering an additional line of support by providing 
practical advice and support to help with any life challenges or questions that Covid 
presents, not necessarily work related. 

 The Employee Assistance Programme provided by Health Assured includes access to 
24/7 counselling services for staff (and any member of their household). There is also a 
range of online diagnostic tools and self-help guides and plans on lifestyle issues such 
as mental health, healthy eating and exercise.  

 Employee support groups were established for staff, focussing on a range of health 
and wellbeing topics in particular long terms health conditions and issues such as 
menopause, Crohns disease, cancer recovery. 

 The ‘Taking Care of YOU Toolkit’ is a useful tool to help prevent and/or manager 
stress. It raises awareness and understanding of mental health, and includes 
straightforward strategies and coping mechanisms to help manage the challenges of 
work and workplace, and the impact of these on mental health.   

 The Looking After You intranet site provides a wealth of resources on a range of health 
and wellbeing topics.  

 Bereavement resources include practical advice and guidance for those dealing with 
bereavement personally, or supporting others through loss.   

 Learning Zone packages are available on personal resilience and mental health. 

Page 10

http://nyccintranet/content/taking-care-you-toolkit


 

 

OFFICIAL 

 Regular communications on healthy workplace issues and national health and 
awareness raising campaigns, utilising the intranet, key messages, blogs, team brief, 
Yammer, newsletters and the Healthy Workplace Group.  Highlighting less well talked 
about topics and provision of related resources (e.g. domestic abuse charter, 
menopause guidance and training). 

 Promotion of access to external events – Humber Coast and Vale wellbeing sessions, 
psychological first aid training, resilience hub. 

 Voice Your Views staff survey incorporating results on wellbeing. 

 Health Needs Assessment planned for 2022. 

 Information and support on Zoom fatigue – webinar and top tips. 

 Guidance for supporting staff who have had Covid-19 and long covid. 
  
4.6  Turnover: Turnover was 11% in 2020/21(LGA benchmark 10%) but increased markedly in 

2021/22, with a predicted outturn of 15.9%, the highest level known. The job market locally 
and nationally has experienced significant pressures dues to a range of factors including 
the impact of BREXIT and market shortages for some roles caused by the pandemic and 
the aftermath. These and other factors including changes in employees’ working 
expectations and priorities have created a more difficult job market. However the length of 
service is 9 years against a local authority average of 7 years and the Council continues to 
be relatively successful in recruiting and retaining staff in a very difficult recruitment 
environment. 

 
4.7  Spend on agency pay: The workforce approach is to employ staff on permanent contracts 

and supplement this with internal relief staff (usually staff with an existing part time contract 
at/in a different location/role) or use existing staff in the same team to work extra hours. 
Agency staff are used only in circumstances when all other options have been exhausted, 
however the Covid pandemic and increasingly scarce labours markets has resulted in the 
increased use of agency solutions. Spend on agency staff was £716,389 in 2020/21 and so 
far is £1,358,922 in the first 3 quarters of 2021/22.  

 
4.8  IR35 requirements, introduced for the public sector by HMRC in 2017, account for a portion 

of total agency spend. For 20/21, the total IR35 was £411,966k and is currently at £410,374 
in the first 3 quarters of 21/21. NYCC minimise the use of interim and consultants covered 
by IR35, and the vast majority of off-payroll (IR35) engagements are for specialist and 
independent mental health and best interest assessors (94%) required due to 
statute/regulation.  

 
4.9  Agency spend remains low compared to other local authority spend; agency spend in 

similar sized authorities was approximately £3-4m pre pandemic and will be much higher 
now. The largest increases in agency use are due to increasing demand for care workers, 
social workers and occupational therapists in Health and Adult Services, and for 
educational psychologists, social workers and children’s residential care workers in 
Children’s Services due to recruitment challenges and increased activity.  

 
5.0  Recruitment Developments   
 
  Young People’s Employment Initiatives 
 
5.1  The impact of Covid 19 on youth employment was significant mid-pandemic, but since 

summer 2021 employment rates have improved and have almost returned to pre-pandemic 
levels. In North Yorkshire the percentage of young people aged 16–24 claiming out of work 
benefits at November 2021 is 4% (6% nationally),  compared to 7.6% in the same period 12 
months prior, and 3% in November 2019 (pre-pandemic).  This is attributed to the return to 

Page 11



 

 

OFFICIAL 

a buoyant employment market combined with the Kickstart Scheme.  NYCC wants to equip 
young people for life and work in a strong North Yorkshire economy, and provides 
employability opportunities for young people which is also  an opportunity to develop a 
pipeline of future talent for the workforce, addressing workplace and labour market 
demographics and recruitment difficulties. 

 
5.2 A range of employment initiatives have been developed in NYCC over many years 

including: Supported Internships, Work Experience, Apprenticeships, Graduate Scheme, 
Graduate Internships, Traineeships, and most recently the Kickstart Scheme, as detailed 
below.  

 

5.3 Kickstart Scheme (Department of Work and Pensions); In October 2020 NYCC applied 
to participate in the Kickstart Scheme, a national government £2 billion fund to support 16–
24 year olds to access employment as part of the Government’s Plan for jobs in response 
to Covid. Employers receive funding to pay the wages for a 25 hour/week job, for 6 months 
for an eligible young person. In total NYCC has supported 136 young people to gain 
Kickstart employment jobs both in NYCC and through partner employers who accessed the 
scheme via us, working with over 120 different employers.  

 
5.4 The process places responsibility for promoting the roles with the Job Centres, so roles are 

not been ‘advertised’ openly like normal vacancies, due to the necessary eligibility criteria. 
There have been significant challenges filling these roles, such as, the rural location of 
employers, the lack of young people’s ability to travel independently, roles in ‘hard to fill’ 
sectors such as care where there are high volume vacancies outside of the Kickstart 
Scheme, and the aspirations of young people in the geographic areas of the vacancies 
simply not matching. Young people completing Kickstart have provided feedback that the 
scheme has been really beneficial and helped them to develop confidence and new skills. 
Over 50% of those completing to date have gained sustainable employment afterwards, 
some with the same employer that hosted the Kickstart role, others with new employers. 

 
5.6 30 young people have been appointed to Kickstart jobs in NYCC and 50% of those who 

have concluded Kickstart have successfully secured other jobs in NYCC, with the reminder 
securing other employment, progressing to higher education/study and a small proportion 
still seeking work. 

 
5.7 Traineeships: First established in 2012, this is a course incorporating work experience, 

aimed at unemployed 16-24 year olds with little or no work experience and not qualified 
higher than level 3. The traineeship supports participants to get ready for work or an 
apprenticeship. Traineeships last from 6 weeks up to 1 year, though most last for less than 
6 months. The government promoted these to employers as a response to youth 
unemployment due to Covid, and NYCC hosted the work experience element for four 
traineeships in early 2021 in Business Support and Technology and Change and also found 
placements via partner employers for two Traineeships candidates seeking placements 
based in York. 

  
  Resourcing for Health and Adult Services and external care providers 

5.8 Recruiting care workers is a national challenge with approximately 105,000 unfilled 
vacancies nationally and some 1,200 in North Yorkshire.  In response NYCC developed the 
MakeCareMatter campaign (www.makecarematter.co.uk) to promote careers in care and 
increase recruitment marketing for the sector. Alongside this, the Recruitment Hub, 
launched in October 2018, provides recruitment support to the care sector and has been a 
strong base from which to increase recruitment support to the sector during the pandemic. 

 

Page 12



 

 

OFFICIAL 

5.9 The pandemic continued to increase demand for care workers, at the same time as 
increased staff absence due to infection and isolation, reduced staff availability. Recruiting 
to frontline roles amidst fear of infection, the impact of the mandatory vaccination, and the 
fact that care work remains unattractive to many job seekers, added to these challenges. 

 
5.10 To meet the internal and external care sector staff requirement, a sector wide multi-channel 

recruitment campaign was launched on 8th November 2021 and continued, including a TV 
campaign, in the New Year. Since the launch, the MakeCareMatter campaign has reached 
over 500,000 people, resulting in hundreds of applicants for the sector, and to date, some 
80 appointments. The Recruitment Hub is currently working with 80 providers to recruit to 
112 vacancies. Over the first three quarters of 21/22, targeted recruitment campaigns have 
resulted in 1,143 applications, 279 interviews and 183 placements 

 
5.11 In additional in order to address a shortage of care staff in NYCC dues to Covid absence 

and recruitment challenges over 94 NYCC staff volunteered to be deployed on a temporary 
basis from other posts into care roles and 33 were placed for the duration of February from 
their current role into NYCC care homes. A further 22 agreed to take on additional, casual 
hours/relief work in care roles in addition to the substantive role.  

 
5.12 The experience and views of two of these internally deployed staff are detailed below; 
 

“I have worked in the Communications team for the York & North Yorkshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership (LEP) since just before the very first lockdown happened. It’s been a 
busy two years working in a communication’s role, but nothing like I imagine it was as a 
front line worker. Following NYCC's shout out for volunteers to help support social care 
services, I felt that I ought to give a little back having had it comparatively easy throughout 
the pandemic and so put myself forward. The whole experience was really well organised 
by NYCC. We had a good conversation about what I could and couldn’t do before assigning 
me a role. The online training was a bit onerous but absolutely necessary to be volunteer-
ready. I’ve now volunteered at Silver Birches adult residential home for two Fridays and I 
hope to continue to do this for as long as I’m needed. I was warmly welcomed by the staff 
at the home. I helped serve refreshments and lunch to the residents. I got the opportunity to 
talk to the residents (one was 103 and SO with it. Another was from South Africa and had 
led such an exciting life) and overall, I really enjoyed it. I actually felt like I was doing 
something different that was making a difference in the real world, instead of working 
remotely from home at my laptop. 
I genuinely would recommend doing this if you can spare the time. I’d be happy to chat to 
anyone considering it to share more about my positive experience.” 

 
“If me offering to do a night shift gives a support worker a full weekend break then I feel I 
am doing my bit, as over the past 2 years they have all worked without complaint on the 
front line in challenging situations for the service, the clients, their families and their home 
life. I am really humbled by their dedication and commitment. My 10hrs a week seems little 
in comparison to what they do on a regular basis and even when I am no longer required to 
work I will volunteer to take out clients and visit to chat with them etc. in my own time. I 
would strongly urge anyone else to consider volunteering as I have found it very rewarding” 

 
5.13 Recruitment to other professional roles continued through the pandemic for the first three 

quarters of 2021/22 including:  

 Social workers: 152 applications, 62 interviews and 28 new starters 

 Occupational Therapists: 18 applications, 10 interviews and 9 new starters 
  
  Resourcing for Education 
 

Page 13



 

 

OFFICIAL 

5.14 Working with the Government established Opportunity Area on the specific challenge to 
increase the quality of teaching and learning and social mobility in the North Yorkshire 
Coastal area, NYCCs recruitment team have supported schools involved to secure full 
staffing since April 2018. To date the programme has: 

 Worked with 51 primary and secondary schools and continued to build solid 

relationships with senior leaders, PGCE providers and HR/LA colleagues. 

 Dealt with a total of 384 vacancies (234 teaching posts, 150 support posts) with 380 of 

them filled first time (97% fill rate)** including filling 67 with no advertising costs, saving 

each school on average £780 per post, total saving £52,260, with indicative savings on 

supply costs based on an average cost of £160 per day at £1.3m per term from school 

supply budgets.  

5.15 Traditionally schools recruitment is face to face, but through Covid lockdown and safety 
restrictions schools were supported to continue recruitment, remotely and successfully, 
avoiding gaps in school resourcing. DfE have audited the resourcing programme, 
highlighting it nationally as an example of excellence. The team continues to work closely 
with DfE having completed a pilot to support the development of national school vacancy 
portal and has now rolled this out across NY schools. 

 
 Apprenticeships 
 
5.16 2021/22 is the fourth full year of the new apprenticeship levy scheme in operation.  The 

actual spend since January 2021 and the committed for 2021/22 is as follows:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.17 Since January 2021, 129 apprentices started with 90 in NYCC roles and 39 in schools. 51 

have completed apprenticeships in Administration, Health & Social Care, Children’s 
Services, Accounting, Traded Service, Digital and Schools. 

 
5.18 NYCC’s levy spend for Q3 2020/21 and to date in 2021/22 is c£768k with c£565k spent on 

core council and c£203k on schools’ apprentices.  
 
5.19 Unspent funds from the levy pot continue to be returned to the treasury, of which 94.4% is 

schools unspent contributions. During the pandemic, apprenticeships continued to be 
delivered virtually where possible but some had to be delayed, all of whom have now 
returned to their apprenticeship programme.  

 
5.20 As previously reported, in July 2020 the government introduced an incentive payment for 

hiring new apprentices with a payment to employers of £2,000 for under 25’s and £1,500 for 
25 and over. In April’ 21 the scheme was extended and raised to £3,000 per apprentice 
regardless of age until end January 2022. 41 claims have been submitted, 30 for NYCC 
and 11 for schools, totalling £95,000; £67,500 for NYCC and £27,500 for schools. In Q4 an 
additional 14 claims will hopefully be submitted for the remaining period totalling an 
additional £42,000.  

 
Public Sector Target Report 2020/21 

 
5.21 As per the annual reporting requirements of the ESFA, NYCC reports on progress towards 

the achievement of the 2019/20 public sector apprenticeship target of 350 apprentices 

Q4 2020/21 and  Q1-Q3  2021/22 

Levy Deduction  Levy Spent Apprentice starts 

Corporate £723,379 £565,328 90 

Schools £657,683 £203,144 39 

Total £1,381,062 £768,472 129 

Page 14



 

 

OFFICIAL 

(2.3% of the workforce including schools). Performance against the target has decreased 
from 0.76% in 2019/20 to 0.73% in 2020/21, with council apprentices at 1% and schools at 
0.5% with 108 starts. NYCC continues to have regard to the public sector target, however it 
remains unachievable due to the continuing challenges and structural limitations previously 
reported and detailed below: 

 The council employs a large number of part time workers whose Full Time Equivalent 
(FTE) makes it difficult to meet the apprentice numbers required. 

 A number of services employ a significant number of part time staff with low contracted 
hours that makes apprenticeships ineligible or impractical. 

 Most schools are small, in rural locations with small workforces and a high percentage 
being part time, making an apprenticeship almost impossible due to low contracted 
hours or ability to cover the 20% off the job training. 

 The county is predominantly rural with public transport provision often reducing labour 
market mobility for apprentices who are lower paid until qualified. NYCC provides a 
transport allowance but it remains a restriction if a car is needed. 

 The requirement to undertake Level 2 Maths and English functional skills for Level 2 & 
3 apprenticeships has a negative impact on recruitment, retention and up skilling staff. 
A large proportion of apprentices require functional skills training as they do not hold an 
equivalent GCSE qualification, particularly in the older workforce, and this has a 
detrimental effect on some service areas, particularly the care sector. The introduction 
of occupational specific standards can be restricting for the public sector, as the 
standards are removing the more generic apprenticeships previously available, leaving 
gaps in provision for apprenticeships at level 2. A large proportion of NYCC’s 
requirements are at level 2 and there is concern that there is no complete pathway for 
entry-level learners which specifically affects opportunities in Business Administration 
and IT. 

  
5.22 The key priorities are;  
   

  The continued delivery of the 25% transfer levy with a focus on supporting North 
Yorkshire employers delivering services in the county, and employers supporting the 
delivery of NYCC and North Yorkshire’s community services.  Work continues with the 
York and North Yorkshire LEP and other partners on this with good progress. In 
addition, NY Highways are levy payers, but do not have sufficient funds for their 
identified requirements, so NYCC can transfer levy funds to support their additional 
apprenticeship training costs, Also working with Health Education England to market 
apprenticeships to health and care employers as a solution to their workforce 
development needs, NYCC continues to support any local care employer by 
transferring available levy funds. 

 
To date, there are 41 transfer levy agreements in place with employers, covering 152 
apprentices, with transfer funding totalling c£1m paid over the life of the 
apprenticeships. There is a spread across sectors with 116 in the care sector, 21 in the 
construction industry, 1 in the digital sector, 1 in the voluntary sector, 9 with Brierley 
Group of companies and 4 with NY Highways.   

 
 The use of the levy to support the development of NYCC employees. NYCC continues 

to support staff with a management qualification with 11 staff undertaking a chartered 
management degree apprenticeship via Coventry University, Scarborough, 3 via York 
St John, 1 with Teesside University, 6 on the Digital and technology solutions 
professional degree apprenticeship, and 1 Digital and technology solutions professional 
degree apprentice with Leeds Beckett University.   

 

Page 15



 

 

OFFICIAL 

An additional 9 higher level Apprenticeships have been identified as appropriate; 
Chartered Legal Executive, Accountancy Taxation Professional, Civil Engineer, Digital 
and Technology Solutions Specialist, Teacher, Senior Leader, Career Development 
Professional and Social Worker, with work continuing with CYPS and HAS to look at 
the integration of the social work route into the current pathways into Social Work 
within CYPS. There are currently 17 apprentices on programme; 12 in CYPS and 5 in 
HAS.  

 
  Graduates 
 
5.23 The graduate programme continues to be successful with 29 currently in post, 70% 

retention of those recruited since 2014, and 84% average across cohorts in the last 3 years. 
A summer 2021 cohort of 18 graduates were recruited, including 6 for Ryedale District 
Council, with virtual welcome briefings held to support line managers and their graduate 
trainees with on-boarding and understanding the graduate scheme. New and existing 
graduates have connected through virtual graduate networks and weekly graduate drop in 
discussions, and provided peer support to new and existing graduates on 
programme. Feedback from services indicates the calibre and contribution of graduates is 
high, and the graduates continue to express positive feedback about their experiences on 
the council’s scheme.  Plans for a summer 2022 cohort of 14 graduates is underway 
including 4 for Ryedale DC and further demand for graduate roles supporting Local 
Government Reorganisation will be added to the campaign as demand emerges from the 
LGR work streams.  

 
  Diversity and inclusion (D&I)  
 
5.24 NYCC aims to be an inclusive and diverse employer, where employees feel valued and 

supported to be themselves at work. As well as being an important part of the wider 
commitment and approach as a council to diversity and inclusion, this provides real benefits 
including a better understanding of our communities and service users, greater retention, 
and greater appeal as an employer, which improves recruitment. 

 
5.24 Employee networks have been set up to engage with colleagues from underrepresented 

backgrounds: the Value in Racial Diversity Employee Network, the Disabled Employee 
Network (DEN), Gender Equality Staff Forum and the LGBT+ Employee Network which in 
autumn 2021 was renamed the Pride Network. Whilst still early in their development, the 
staff networks have proven to be a valuable asset, not only in the support and sense of 
community that they provide members with, but also in shedding light on staff experiences, 
and areas that require improvements. The Senior Managers Seminar in November 2021 
included presentations from each of the employee networks about topics that matter to 
them. It provided an opportunity for open dialogue about diversity and inclusion and actions 
have been drawn up following this to ensure views are not just listened to but change is 
made where needed.  

 
 5.25 Diversity and inclusion is about actively celebrating difference and celebrating awareness 

days has promoted and normalised discussions on issues relating to diversity and inclusion. 
Celebrations have included Black History Month, National Inclusion Week, Disability History 
Month, LGBT+ History Month, International Women’s Day, Women’s History Month, among 
others. From social media posts, Yammer posts, intranet articles, and senior manager blog 
features, staff have been engaged by providing case studies and videos on a regular basis. 

 
 5.26  The future is positive for NYCC’s diversity and inclusion journey. Through engaging with 

staff, and senior leadership support for this agenda employees can be confident NYCC is a 
place that values them. Future work includes: 

Page 16

https://web.yammer.com/main/groups/eyJfdHlwZSI6Ikdyb3VwIiwiaWQiOiI0MDQ4NTkwNDM4NCJ9/all
https://web.yammer.com/main/groups/eyJfdHlwZSI6Ikdyb3VwIiwiaWQiOiI0MDQ4NTkwNDM4NCJ9/all
https://web.yammer.com/main/groups/eyJfdHlwZSI6Ikdyb3VwIiwiaWQiOiI0MDQ4NTkwNDM4NCJ9/all
http://nyccintranet/news/lgbt-history-month
http://nyccintranet/news/womens-history-month-2021


 

 

OFFICIAL 

 Building on employee networks and enabling groups to shape the change needed 

 Improved Equality and Diversity training and development for staff and managers 

 Ongoing education and cultural awareness communication programme 

 Development of our external and internal inclusive employer profile 

 Improve D&I analytics and inclusive engagement indicators to measure success 
 
 
 

Engaging the Workforce 

5.27 The county council’s workforce operates in a continually changing environment and is 
encouraged to challenge ways of working, to improve service delivery and be an active part 
of the changes underway.  Engagement is crucial to the success of any change, listening to 
what staff have to say and responding to their views. 

 
  Staff Survey 
 
5.28  Every 2 years, NYCC undertakes a comprehensive staff survey to identify trends in the 

workforce, and to gauge how the organisation is performing. This provides a valuable 
insight into the views of staff across a range of subjects, such as how they feel about their 
jobs, working for the council, how the organisation serves its customers, plus management 
and leadership. These biennial surveys are followed up by shorter pulse surveys in the 
intervening years. The longer term trends reported here are based on the full surveys to 
ensure consistency. 3,119 members of staff responded to the 2021 “Voice your Views” staff 
survey which was open for 5 weeks; this is an overall response rate of 41%, which 
compares well against figures from 2019 (43% completion with 9 weeks duration). Analysis 
of the 2021 results shows that despite the dramatic changes to working practices during the 
pandemic, there is still an increasing level of overall satisfaction, up from 71% in 2017 to 
74%. There was also a gradual and consistent improvement across all headline indicators; 
demonstrating that management processes, equipment and support for staff have all 
improved despite the scale of change. Of particular note, the leadership questions show a 
more dramatic rate of improvement with an 8 percentage point improvement since the last 
full survey in 2019 survey, including a significant increase in satisfaction in senior 
management communications with staff. There are also strong positive results in questions 
on senior management keeping staff informed on Covid and LGR.  Additional questions 
asked in 2021 also show staff are positive about future working arrangements including 
working in a hybrid way, spending their time both working from home and the office when it 
is safe to do so.  

Page 17



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
 
  5.29 Feedback from the survey showed that the increase in online communication from 

management teams increased accessibility to senior managers and provided effective staff 
support and team building. 85% of staff agreed that line managers have done a good job of 
keeping them informed about Covid, and 83% for senior managers keeping staff informed. 
In relation to local government reorganisation 79% of staff felt well informed by senior 
managers. Engagement of staff through communication continued to develop throughout 
2021, with the greater use of Yammer, regular emails, blogs from senior management, and 
continuing the Chief Executive’s webinars.  

  
 5.30 In the 2021 survey questions were asked of staff who had been working from home about 

their expectations of future ways of working, including staff confidence returning to office 
buildings. The survey showed 59% were confident about returning to office buildings, 26% 
uncertain and 15% not feeling confident. In response to this, initiatives to support staff and 
address concerns around working arrangements or changes to ways of working were 
communicated and further support continues to be developed around staff health, 
wellbeing, and resilience.  

  
 5.31     Data from the staff survey was provided via the analysis tool, available on the council 

intranet to all staff for transparency. Presentations on the data were provided to Directorate 
leadership teams, Management Board and the Executive, and specific questions were 
analysed by key owners. Information from the survey fed into the new ways of working 
summer 2021 focus programme detailed below. A shorter pulse survey to all staff is being 
considered for 2022.  

  
  ‘New Ways of Working’ engagement programme 
 
5.32 This was delivered across the workforce, during summer and autumn 2021. It included; 

 the development of a toolkit to support team and individual discussions to capture 
views and record key points of discussion,  

Page 18



 

 

OFFICIAL 

  focus group sessions with over 200 attendees looking at new ways of working and 
sharing experiences of how the working environment has changed and how it we can 
work together in the future. These conversations complemented team discussions and 
1-2-1 discussions taking place over the summer months.  

 Further engagement included new ways of working conversations with employee 
network groups.  

 Engagement with over 150 middle managers via 11 virtual sessions in October 2021 
on new ways of working with managers sharing their experiences and asking 
questions. Feedback on the virtual sessions were good. 

 
5.33 In December 2021, the seventh annual staff Innovation Awards took place virtually (and 

recorded and shared with all staff on the council intranet). Over 350 staff members joined 
the celebration highlighting innovative achievements that have taken place across the 
council over the past year. There were more than 60 entries, of which many demonstrated 
adaption to new ways of working. This year all of the entries were showcased in a video 
montage, alongside videos of the shortlisted entries in the award categories of: Improving 
the Customer Experience, Improving Efficiency & Effectiveness; Inspiring Change Behind 
the Scenes; People’s Choice; and the Chief Executive’s Award.  

 
  Learning and Development 
 
5.34 Strengthening the workforce by developing the requisite knowledge, skills and behaviours 

to meet the workforce priorities is important, and headline data for Q1-3  2021/22 is below: 

 608 classroom training events for 5,258 delegates (incl. 413 from PVI Sectors) 

 12 started a qualification with 23 completed with 22 on going.  

 14,359 mandatory online learning completions (including 2,783 from PVI Sectors) 

 23,390 non-mandatory online learning completions (including 2,157 from the PVI) 

 536 CPD training/learning activities undertaken  

 25 middle managers completed Middle Management Programme with a further 39 

starting as cohort 12 in September. 

5.35 Online learning resources delivered via the Learning Zone, accessed by staff from any 
device 24/7 

 Ashridge (Learning materials for managers) 5,290 views 

 Learning Nexus 9,106 

 Learning Zone views 790,628 

5.36 The key training and learning priorities for 2021/22 included; 

 Support for HAS including a new delivery model increasing accessibility to training, as 
well as emerging needs resulting from the pandemic.  

 Implement the new blended learning approach incorporating webinars, online 
packages and classroom workshops as a move away from a predominantly classroom 
based approach.  

 Equip managers with requisite skills to enable them to manage new ways of working, 
navigate change and manage staff wellbeing. 

 Equip colleagues to enable them to manage their own mental health and wellbeing. 

 Develop better knowledge and skills around the diversity and inclusion agenda. 

 Support health integration by co-delivery of training and learning between health and 
social care colleagues.  

Page 19



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 Ongoing training to support organisational development work and service transitions, 
including team development and behaviour change.  

 Continue to deliver adult social care training to wider sector via the Learning 4 Care 
project (funded by the IBCF) whilst planning for a longer term working relationship with 
external providers post funding. 

 Build on successes such as the accreditation to Skills for Care Training Provider 
Endorsement Framework and the Head First Approved Mental Health training 
providers list by increased commercial growth in new areas. 

 Continue to support a high number of Assessed and Supported Year in Employment 
(ASYE) programmes for Newly Qualified Social Workers (NQSW)  

 Provide mentoring, observation, support groups, guidance and advice for over 100 
Practice Educators in social care. 

 Continue succession planning alongside service planning and individual performance 
management, with the annual review of ‘hotspot roles’ completed as services assess 
risk and readiness of senior management, service critical/statutory and hard to recruit 
or retain roles, whilst developing internal talent and workforce plans. 

 SMART Coaching continued to be a priority, with January seeing a high level of staff 
referred for coaching to support various work related activity. 

 Despite the obvious challenges this year, T&L continued to build upon our commercial 
successes, this included work with Veritau, Selby District Council, Selby Partnership 
Team, Ryedale District Council, Harrogate Borough Council, Warrington Council and 
Norfolk County Councils as well as North Yorkshire Highways.  

 Capturing and developing “curiosity” within HAS has been high on the agenda so far 
this year.  T&L are currently working with HRBPs to develop and deliver a pilot with 
focus on capturing and developing curious behaviours in order to understand and 
promote the impact this has on colleagues and the people whom they support. This will 
form an important culture shift within the Service areas. 

 
  Pay and Reward 
 
5.37 Spend on pay is monitored on a quarterly basis and increased spend on Covid related 

payments has to some extent been offset by savings from furlough and travel and other 
expenses where service delivery was limited due to Covid. Pay terms and conditions are 
updated via negotiation with Unison to ensure they are fair and continue to attract and 
reward, with recent changes to payments for being on standby out of hours and to 
payments for working at a weekend 

 
5.38 Workforce supply and demand is causing pressures throughout the workforce and the 

failure of national negotiations to agree a pay award for 2021-22 for NJC employees has 
not helped with pay pressures. NYCC agreed with Unison to pay the national employers’ 
offer ‘on account’ ahead of the final agreement, to avoid further delay for employees. 

 
5.38 The employee benefit scheme remains popular internally and generates savings for 

employees and the council as an employer. The employee benefits offer which included 
Cycle to Work, green lease cars, home technology, Financial Wellbeing and improved 
health cash plans, is being supplemented with a shared cost additional voluntary 
contribution (SCAVC) scheme to help employees plan for their retirement. As part of local 
government review the benefits are being offered to the NY District Councils ahead of 
vesting day where possible. 

 
  LGR Update  
 

Page 20



 

 

OFFICIAL 

5.39 HR/Workforce Workstream - This Workstream, with Justine Brooksbank as sponsor, has 
the remit for the transition of the workforce and all workforce related issues. 

 
5.40 Work began in November’21 to set up sub groups to support this work, as below. 

 TUPE;  ensure all staff from the seven district/borough councils are TUPE transferred 
to North Yorkshire Council in line with legislative requirements. 

 Training & Development; plan and provide statutory and mandatory training for day 
one, develop the manager training and development programme and the induction 
programme for all staff. 

 Resourcing;  develop the employer brand to promote the council as a great place to 
work in the market to attract applicants, ensuring safe recruitment, developing the 
future workforce (apprentices, graduates, Kickstart), and arrangements/processes for 
onboarding staff. 

 Senior Leadership Structure;  recruitment of CEX for North Yorkshire Council. 
Develop with Implementation team and other workstreams proposals on Tier 2 and 3 
structures ready for the CEX and Executive to consider and determine 
pooling/ringfencing and selection processes.  

 Pay & Reward; Develop the pay policy and grading structure, job evaluate new and 
revised roles, develop terms and conditions and statement of particulars. 

 HR Data, Systems & Payroll; Transfer all staff onto HR/Payroll system and pay staff 
correctly in April 2023.  Ensure safe transition of personal files and other 
documentation linked to staff across districts. 

 HR Policies; With a continuing authority model NYCC policies will transfer, but this is 
an opportunity to review and tweak to ensure policies are fit for purpose. 

 Employee Relations; Agree trade union framework and collective consultation 
process for the new council. Consult with Unison as required during transitional period 
to get agreement on policies and practices.   

 Health & Wellbeing; Determine Occupational Health provision and health and 
wellbeing support to ensure staff are supported, linking to Health and Safety and the 
provision of Health Surveillance.  

 
5.41 Work is progressing very well with excellent working relationships between HR colleagues 

across all eight councils.  
 
5.42 HR Operational Group - On a weekly basis all HR leads from across the eight councils 

come together to discuss and resolve operational issues affecting the here and now.  Work 
includes joint recruitment campaigns, sharing best practice on policies and procedures, 
putting in place a secondments agreement to be used across the councils, and in general 
supporting each other.   

 
5.43 HR Support across other workstreams - HR Colleagues are also supporting the other 

workstreams on the LGR programme.  This work is evolving and increased capacity and 
support from HR will be required as we progress nearer to vesting day.   

 
5.44  Members Working Group - The Implementation Board considered that having a member 

group to raise and address workforce issues is of benefit. This new group begins meeting in 
March and will:  

 provide member oversight and input as appropriate into the HR/Workforce workstream  

 provide a “critical friend” function to the workstream sponsor 

 consider the work and progress of the workstream 

Page 21



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 provide a two way conduit for ensuring staff concerns/issues in councils are raised and 
addressed. 

 
5.45 Members are: 

Cllr Philip Broadbank (Harrogate) 
Cllr Keane Duncan (Ryedale) 
Cllr Caroline Goodrick (NYCC) 
Cllr Helen Grant (Richmondshire) 
Cllr Mike Jordan (NYCC) 
Cllr Cliff Lunn (Selby) 
Cllr Sue Metcalfe (Craven) 
Cllr Tony Randerson (Scarborough) 
Cllr Malcolm Taylor (Hambleton) 

 
5.46 The following items will be considered at every meeting; 

 An overview report covering the work of all the subgroups. This report will provide a 
summary of work across all subgroups in the previous two months and highlight areas 
of both challenge and interest. 

 A deep dive into one of the subgroup areas.  

 Any queries or points of interest requested for consideration by any members. 

 Feedback on any staff issues identified by or flagged to members at a local level.  

 
6.0 Conclusion 
 
6.1  It has been another demanding and unusual year dominated by continuing to respond to 

Covid, service pressures and preparing for local government changes. A hybrid working 
model which can be adapted to individual and service needs has been developed in 
preparation for a return to workbases. The council has continued to innovate and adapt to 
attract and retain in a difficult recruitment market. Additional support was put in place in 
recognition of the ongoing pressures, particularly in adult social care. Staff feedback 
confirms that employees’ appreciate how the Council has dealt with the pressures of the 
last 2 years, at both a corporate and team level.  A strong start has been made on the work 
agenda for LGR, already establishing effective working groups with District and trade union 
colleagues. The focus continues on excellent communication and engagement to support 
the workforce to remain resilient through a continuing period of change.  

 
 
Justine Brooksbank, Assistant Chief Executive (Business Support) 
 
22 February 2022 

Page 22



 

 

OFFICIAL 

North Yorkshire County Council 

Corporate and Partnerships Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Corporate Volunteer Project Update 

Monday 7th March 2022 

 

1.0 Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 To provide Members with an update on the Corporate Volunteering Project and outline 

continued progress made to date. 

 
2.0 Introduction 
 
2.1 An overview on the Corporate Volunteer Project was provided at the Corporate and 

Partnerships O&S Committee in 2019, 2020 and most recently in April 2021.  Details were 
provided about how the Corporate Volunteer Project was approved as part of the 2020 
Programme and how it aims to maximise and optimise the use of volunteers across all 
services, creating consistencies in: marketing, recruitment, induction, expenses, training, 
ongoing support and efficient volunteer processes with the purpose of optimising the use of 
volunteers and through positive volunteer experience aid retention.  

 
3.0 Corporate Volunteering Project 
 
3.1 Sponsored by Stronger Communities the corporate Volunteer Project is being delivered by 

the Resourcing Solutions Team – HR, recognising the synergies between the volunteer 
journey and employee journey, whilst acknowledging that there are key differences 
between the two. The focus for this project is to achieve the objectives presented at the 
mid-cycle briefing in 2019.  A Volunteer Sub-Group continues to meet regularly to provide a 
steer for the project, discussing challenges and priorities and inputting into areas of work as 
they progress.  This group comprises of representatives from Stronger Communities and 
the Resourcing Solutions Team and lead officers from the services that manage volunteers. 

 
3.2 Impact of COVID on NYCC volunteering 
 Nearly all regular NYCC volunteering services halted or significantly reduced during 2020 

due to the lockdowns and impact of the pandemic. Whilst volunteering mostly resumed in 
services in 2021 it was reduced compared to pre-pandemic. For example, the Rotters 
Volunteers normally attend community events to promote waste reduction and composting 
and most of these events were cancelled, even in to 2021.  

 The table shows that the number of volunteer hours completed in quarter 1 & 2* 2021 
compared to the previous two years. 
*Financial year quarters 

  

No. of registered volunteers 

Q1 April, May, June Q2 July, August, September 

Quarter 1 
2019 

Quarter 1 
2020 

Quarter 1 2021 Quarter 2 
2019 

Quarter 2 
2020 

Quarter 2 
2021 

5988 5868 5224 5925 5868 4784 

 
 

No. of volunteer hours  

Quarter 1 
2019 

Quarter 1 
2020 

Quarter 1 2021 Quarter 2 2019 Quarter 2 
2020 

Quarter 2 
2021 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



 

 

OFFICIAL 

54,150 10,087 6,712 65,357 11,117 10,884 

   
As the COVID restrictions reduced in 2021 and into 2022 services are starting to engage 
with volunteers regarding a return. Some services, particularly Libraries, have 
acknowledged that some volunteers feel nervous about returning to community based 
volunteering and have not returned in 2021 which accounts for some of the reduction in 
registered volunteers on Q2 2021.  In addition as more schools have transferred to 
Academies this has reduced the number of School Governors in LA schools. 

 
3.3 Volunteer Feedback 
 An online survey was issued to NYCC volunteers in November 2021, with a return date of 

9th January 2022.  80 volunteers responded to the survey. 
The survey aimed to understand volunteers’ motivation and experience of volunteering to 
improve volunteering / social action opportunities in the future and thereby attract and retain 
volunteers. 

 Overall feedback was positive, with 84% of respondents satisfied with their 
volunteering role.  

 The majority (51%) are volunteering as much as they did before the pandemic and a 
small proportion are volunteering more than they did previously (5%). 

 The most common reason overall for getting involved was wanting to keep active 
(mentally and socially) (74%), closely followed by wanting to help their local community 
(73%). 

 More than 90% of respondents agreed with the following and no one disagreed: 

- the expectations of what I do is reasonable 

- there is always someone I can go to for help 

- I know how to raise an issue if needed and I am well supported 

 Respondents were asked if they were likely to volunteer in the future; 92% said they 
likely to volunteer over the next six months and 96% said they likely to volunteer over 
the next eighteen months.  

 The majority (80%) of volunteers do not want any kind of recognition. Those that did 
want recognition thought that an invitation to a celebration or social event (19%) or 
verbal/written thanks from the service (18%) were the best form of thanks. 

 
We intend to do some communications to share and celebrate the positivity around the 
satisfaction with the NYCC volunteer scheme. Whilst volunteers have strongly reported that 
they do not want any kind of recognition, the appreciation and positively created by 
thanking volunteers and showing appreciation is not to be under estimated and will continue 
to be important. 

 
The survey will form a good baseline benchmark prior to LGR and has provided useful 
information to help us shape the way we attract new volunteers and retain them. 

 
3.4 Online Application Form 

This is the first part of the Digital Volunteer Journey (see 3.5). An online Volunteer 
Application form for new volunteers was trialled in Summer 2020 and is now in place for 
services to use when they next wish to recruit new volunteers. Prior to implementing all 
volunteer services were consulted and involved in the content of the application. This online 
form is linked to the corporate recruitment system and enables swift and efficient 
processing, automated correspondence to applicants and, where applicable, links to DBS 
checks and automated reference requests.  All correspondence and related activity is 

Page 24



 

 

OFFICIAL 

tracked through the system for each volunteer applicant which provides a cohesive 
approach for all services. 

  
3.5  Digital Volunteer Journey 

The aim is to develop and implement an online process for volunteers to; apply, complete 
the recruitment process, induction, record volunteering hours and log /claim expenses as 
currently these are all manual processes. Process mapping, consultation with Volunteer 
Coordinators and a Project Brief has been developed for this approach and is currently with 
Technology and Change (T&C) for development and implementation. This is one of the 
objectives of the project that will release the greatest efficiencies and benefits for volunteers 
themselves. Whilst we will progress with volunteers digital journey we know and will 
provision for those volunteers who prefer alternative approaches.  
 

3.6  Volunteer Celebration events 
During 2021 we worked in partnership with Community Service Organisations to organise 
and deliver some locally hosted Volunteer Celebration events, to thank all volunteers from 
all sectors (Not exclusively NYCC volunteers). Unfortunately the changing Covid 
restrictions mean some of these events were postponed or cancelled, however 
representatives from NYCC volunteers were invited to those that progressed. (See section 
4.2 for future celebration events). 
 

3.7 Sustainability  
Recognising the ongoing value of volunteers the programme and support continues into the 
future and will help with the transition to the new council. 
 

4.0 Future Focus 
 
4.1 The key focus for the Corporate Volunteering Project over the next 12 – 18 months is Local 

Government Reorganisation (LGR) and ensuring that volunteer services currently engaged 
by one of the District, Borough or the County Council are identified and brought into a 
consistent Volunteer approach in the new North Yorkshire Council. 

 
 To date we have identified which Councils currently engage volunteers and are currently 

working with their services to identify the number of volunteers and approach for recruiting, 
training, coordinating and supporting them. 

 
 All policies and procedures relating to volunteers will be reviewed and it will be proposed 

that all volunteers in the new Council are brought in line with the same Volunteer Policy to 
ensure the same consistent approach. 

 
4.2 Volunteers Week 
 
 We will raise the profile of NYCC Volunteers during Volunteers Week 2022 to ensure out 

volunteers and recognised and thanked for their contributions. This is likely to include press 
pieces, social media and some events to get volunteers together to say thank you. 

 
5.0 Recommendations 
 
5.1 Scrutiny Members are asked to note the Volunteer Project progress. 
 
 
Keeley Metcalfe 
Senior HR Advisor 
 
23 February 2022 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

OFFICIAL 

   

Corporate & Partnerships Overview and Scrutiny Committee Remit   

Scope   

• The Council’s corporate organisation and structure, resource allocation, asset management, procurement policy, people strategy, 

equality and diversity, performance management, communication and access to services.   

• Partnership working, community development, community engagement, community strategies and community safety.   

• This Committee is the Crime & Disorder Committee for the purposes of Part 3 of the Police and Justice Act 2006.   
   
Agenda Briefings (Attended by Group Spokespersons only) - will be held at 9.30am on the day of the committee meeting 

Corporate and Partnerships Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

2022-2023 Draft Work Programme    

 

Committee Meeting – 7 March 2022 @ 10:30am  

Annual Workforce Plan   Review of Annual Plan – Justine Brooksbank, Assistant Chief Executive (Business Support)     

Corporate Volunteering Project   Update on Corporate Volunteering Project – Keeley Metcalfe, Senior HR Advisor   

Council Plan  A verbal update on the final amendments to the Council Plan for 2022-23 

Draft Work Programme 2022/23   Consideration of the draft work programme for the coming municipal year   

Mid Cycle Briefing – 11 April 2022 @ 10:30am  

Work Programme 2021/22   Consideration of work programme  

Committee Meeting - 6 June 2022 @ 10:30am  

North Yorkshire Syrian Refugee 
Settlement Programme   

Annual Programme Update – Jonathan Spencer, Refugee Resettlement Project Manager   

Community Safety   
Bi-annual Update on Community Safety Plan Delivery & Partnership Working – Odette Robson, 
Head of Safer Communities & Dr Justin Ives (Chairman)   

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 7



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Property Services Bi-annual Performance Update – Jon Holden, Head of Property Services    

Insurance & Risk   
Two-yearly update on Insurance Claims, Risk Exposure & Management – Fiona Sowerby, Head 
of Insurance & Risk Management   

Community Libraries   Annual Update on Library Services – Chrys Mellor, General Manager Libraries   

Locality Budgets   Annual Review 2020/21 – Neil Irving, AD Policy, Partnerships & Communities  

Work Programme 2021/22   Consideration of work programme  

Mid Cycle Briefing – 25 July 2022 @ 10:30am  

Work Programme 2021/22   Consideration of work programme  

Committee Meeting – 12 September 2022 @ 10:30am  

Community Safety - PFCC   
Update on the implementation of plans for collaboration between North Yorkshire Police and 
North Yorkshire Fire & Rescue Service from new Police, Fire & Crime Commissioner   

Stronger Communities   
Bi-annual update on work of the Stronger Communities team and progress update on the 
corporate volunteering project – Marie-Ann Jackson, Head of Stronger Communities & Keeley 
Metcalfe, NYCC Resourcing Solutions Business Partner 

Customer Access   
Update on the Operation of the Parish Portal and Parish Council engagement – Nigel Smith, 
Head of Highway Operations   

Youth Justice   Performance Update – Steve Walker, YJS Planning & Development Officer   

Resilience and Emergencies  
Purpose: An overview of the National Resilience Standards and NYCC’s current performance, 
together with an overview of ongoing Resilience and Emergencies work – Matt Robinson, Head 
of Resilience and Emergencies 

Work Programme 2021/22   Consideration of work programme  

Mid Cycle Briefing – 24 October 2022 @ 10:30am  

Work Programme 2021/22  Consideration of the work programme  

P
age 28



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Committee Meeting – 5 December 2022 @ 10:30am  

Community Safety   
Bi-annual Update on Community Safety Plan Delivery & Partnership Working – Odette Robson, 
Head of Safer Communities & Chair of CSP 

Brierley Group Update Vicki Dixon, AD Strategic Resources (BES & CS) 

Investment Strategy    
Update on NYCC’s Investment  Strategy & its Investments – Karen Iveson, AD Strategic 
Resources   

Council Plan Development   
Progress update on implementation of Council Plan Priorities – Simon Moss, Strategy & 
Performance Team Leader 

Customer Access   Update on the Operation of the Customer Portal  - Robert Ling, AD Technology & Change   

NYCC Property Services   Bi-annual Performance Update – Jon Holden, Head of Property Services  

Equality and Diversity   
Overview of progress with achieving the Council’s new Equality and Diversity objectives – Deb 
Hugill, Senior Strategy & Performance Officer   

Work Programme 2021/22  Consideration of the work programme  

Mid Cycle Briefing – 16 January 2023 @ 10:30am  

Work Programme 2021/22   Consideration of the work programme for the remainder of the municipal year   

Committee Meeting – 6 March 2023 @ 10:30am  

Annual Workforce Plan   Review of Annual Plan – Justine Brooksbank, Assistant Chief Executive (Business Support)     

Insurance   
Two-yearly update on Insurance Claims, Risk Exposure & Management – Fiona Sowerby, Head 
of Insurance & Risk Management   

Draft Work Programme 2022/23   Consideration of the draft work programme for the coming municipal year   

 

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 31

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Public Minutes of the meeting held on 6 December 2021
	4 Workforce Update
	5 Corporate Volunteering Project Update
	7 Draft Work Programme 2022/23
	8 Private Minute of the meeting held on 6 December 2021

